
1 
 

 

TOWN OF CAROLINA SHORES 

  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

MEETING MINUTES 

February 7, 2019 

1:30 p.m. 

 

 

Mayor Joyce Dunn called the February 7, 2019 Economic Development Commission meeting 

to order at 1:30 p.m. Commissioners present: Joseph J. Przywara, Bill Brennan, Gere Dale, 

Greg Davis and Beverly Mayhew. Also, present: Jon Mendenhall, Town Administrator and 

Nicole Hewett, Town Clerk. 

 

Absent:  None 

 

Approval of Minutes: 

 

COMMISSIONER BRENNAN MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES OF JANUARY 10, 2019. 

COMMISSIONER DAVIS SECONDED THE MOTION.  MAYOR DUNN CALLED 

FOR A VOTE AND MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE. 

 

Administrative Reports: 

 

Mr. Mendenhall said he has nothing new to report at this time.  Mr. Mendenhall said all 

administrative reports were accounted for on the Monday meeting agenda of the Board of 

Commissioners. 

 

New Business: 

 

Annexation Update – Mr. Mendenhall said he talked with the Carolina Shores North neighborhood 

and advised them of where we were.  Mr. Mendenhall said he talked to the Town Attorney about 

writing the letter for the Delegation and how it needs to be written.  Mr. Mendenhall said the letter 

will be prepared for a signature in March. 

 

Website and Facebook – Commissioner Brennan said there are a couple of things he wishes to talk 

about. Commissioner Brennan said we need to get pictures on the website of the Town, not stock 

photos from somewhere else.  Commissioner Brennan said we need local Town stuff, not the Sunset 

bridge or pier.  Commissioner Brennan said he doesn’t know why we are having trouble finding four 

or five pictures. Commissioner Brennan said take pictures of Town Hall.  Mayor Dunn said when 

there is a special event going on in one of the communities, put those pictures up. Commissioner 

Brennan said do we have any pictures of the Christmas Tree Lighting. Commissioner Dale said how 

about the water tank going down yesterday.  Commissioner Brennan said we could put a video of 

that on the website.  Commissioner Dale said he went and it was pretty spectacular.  Commissioner 

Dale said they did a fantastic job. Commissioner Dale said it fell exactly where they expected it to.  

Mayor Dunn said that people where asking her about the two little shacks that are there.  Mayor 

Dunn asked if the County has any intentions of clearing that or is that our issue.  Mr. Mendenhall 

said that is going to stay there to be used as bathrooms and storage. Commissioner Dale said there 

are actually three buildings, one is tucked back in the trees.  Commissioner Brennan said so we need 

some pictures; we need to get it done. Commissioner Brennan said it’s been out there for two years 

and we still have those stock photos. Mayor Dunn said we have a bunch of Town photos, Niki 



2 
 

shared them with me.  Mrs. Hewett said that Mr. Mendenhall instructed staff to collect some 

pictures and we are working on getting those updated. Mayor Dunn said that one of her favorites is 

actually her community sign that has snow in it. Commissioner Brennan said make sure it is 

something from the Town and Mrs. Hewett said they would. Commissioner Brennan said the other 

thing is Facebook.  Commissioner Brennan said we have attempted to put a Facebook page up.  

Commissioner Brennan said if you do a Facebook search of Carolina Shores, there are three or four 

pages that say Carolina Shores, Town of Carolina Shores, Carolina Shores North or Carolina 

whatever. Commissioner Brennan said part of the problem is that which one is the real one.  

Commissioner Davis said there is the problem.  Mayor Dunn said that two of them have been 

created by her over time and she can take them down very quickly. Commissioner Brennan said 

there is one page that he wanted to look at and asked Mr. Mendenhall to set it up so they could look 

at it on the big screen and the large conference room. Commissioner Brennan said there are pictures 

and twenty odd graphics of religious type stuff on there. Commissioner Brennan said it’s not even 

something that is part of the Town. Commissioner Brennan said we have to get something and say 

it’s ours and say this is the official site of the Town of Carolina Shores. The Board of 

Commissioners and the public moved to the large conference room. Mr. Mendenhall brought up 

Facebook on the TV and the Board of Commissioners reviewed the Facebook pages with the words 

Carolina Shores in them. The Board of Commissioners reviewed a page that has the office hours 

listed as the Convenience Site hours. The Board reviewed the random photos.  Commissioner Davis 

said this is not Board business.  The Board reviewed more pictures and discussed the fact that it lists 

the Town Hall address.  Mr. Mendenhall said there is a disclaimer at the bottom that says it’s an 

unofficial page and not endorsed by us. Mr. Mendenhall said they do have a Constitutional right and 

also freedom of religion. Mrs. Hewett showed the Board another page. Mr. Mendenhall said 

everybody needs to understand that if this was the Town’s official website page, these posts are 

protected, they can’t be deleted, they have to be archived much like when somebody comments at a 

meeting. Mayor Dunn said what she has designed, you can’t post on. Mayor Dunn said nobody can 

post on it other than the owner of it. Mr. Mendenhall said you are the only one that can comment 

and Mayor Dunn said yes. Mayor Dunn said it is one-way information.  Commissioner Mayhew 

said it’s only going to be informational and Mayor Dunn said yes. Mrs. Hewett said the Board had 

asked to do a little research into this. Mrs. Hewett said there was a blog on Coates Canons, regarding 

a lawsuit where somebody got sued and lost because someone put a comment on Facebook and 

someone didn’t like it and deleted the comment. Mrs. Hewett said then the issue of freedom of 

speech gets thrown into it. Mrs. Hewett said that Coates Canons recommends that if you are going to 

have a webpage/Facebook page that you should come up with a plan on how you are going to use it.  

Mrs. Hewett said by doing that, no one can say well they let me post or they didn’t let me post. Mrs. 

Hewett said that she and Mr. Mendenhall looked at other towns and the town surrounding us 

allowed comment.  Mr. Mendenhall said that Oak Island had like 200 comments on one of their 

posts. Mayor Dunn said we could post on there that this site is not used for discussion, if you have 

something to discuss with the Town, here is the number to call. Commissioner Davis said he just 

doesn’t know if it is worth it. Mayor Dunn said everybody in the world has one but us. 

Commissioner Mayhew said she thought with all the problems regarding Facebook that people were 

getting away from it. Mayor Dunn said not organizations.  Mayor Dunn said the different schools 

have their own, the County has one and the other towns have one. Mayor Dunn said clearly, it’s not 

a gigantic problem because everybody but us is doing it. There was further discussion of the 

Facebook page they were looking at and watched a video on it. Mr. Mendenhall said its not clear to 

him that the guy on the page is actually running the page, he might just be a poster on the page. 

Commissioner Brennan said he just wanted to demonstrate the issues we have here. Commissioner 

Mayhew said she thinks if we publicize that we have a Facebook page and this is what they get first, 

we are going to get all kinds of comments.  Commissioner Davis said he agrees. Commissioner 

Mayhew said if she saw the address and the phone number of this building, she would think it was 

ours.  Mayor Dunn said she thinks that is an issue with them using our identity. Commissioner Davis 

said you can’t stop this. Commissioner Przywara said they are just giving information. Mr. 



3 
 

Mendenhall discussed Calabash Voice. Mr. Mendenhall said it’s not the official Facebook page of 

the Town of Calabash, it’s more like a community thing. Mayor Dunn said that sounds like 

Nextdoor.com. Mr. Mendenhall said if it was a government account, you can’t shut down the 

comments.  Mrs. Hewett said if that were a government account, it could under freedom of speech.  

Commissioner Davis said the town doesn’t run it which means that he is allowed to take down 

comments if he’s the Admin. of the account. Mr. Mendenhall showed the video of the water tank 

falling. There was small discussion of the water tank falling. The Board moved back into the 

chambers. Commissioner Brennan said he doesn’t think they should make some critical decision 

today about a Facebook account, it’s something to think about. Commissioner Przywara said what 

the Mayor is saying is that we have to be able to put something out there but with no comment or 

anything. Commissioner Davis said that is the only way he would do it. Mayor Dunn said that is the 

research she has found.  Mayor Dunn said if you declare yourself as just a Facebook account then 

anybody could post on it but if you declare yourself as a business account, you have the option of do 

I want it open for conversation or do I want it one way. Commissioner Davis said the only way he 

would have it is one way. Mayor Dunn said she just trying to figure out how to use it as a 

communication tool and is there a way to do it without it becoming a problem. Mayor Dunn said she 

thinks Commissioner Brennan is right, just let’s think about it until our next meeting. Commissioner 

Brennan said yes, we don’t have to make a quick decision, put it down for next month. Mr. 

Mendenhall said sounds good. 

 

Public Comment: 
 

None 

 

Closed Session: 

 

None 

 

Adjourn: 
 

COMMISSIONER BRENNAN MADE A MOTION TO ADJOURN THE FEBRUARY 7, 2019 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION MEETING AT 1:54 PM. COMMISSIONER 

DAVIS SECONDED THE MOTION. MAYOR DUNN CALLED FOR A VOTE AND 

MOTION CARRIED BY UNANIMOUS VOTE. 

 

 

 
 

Mayor 
 
 

Submitted by: 

Nicole L. Hewett, Town Clerk 

 


